EARNEST CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U45200KA2011PTC059905
No. 2/4, Langford Garden, Richmond Town, Bengaluru 560025 IN
Ph:080-41343400 EMAIL: control@adarshdevelopers.com
Website: https://www.earnestconstructions.com

September 29, 2025

To,

BSE Limited,

Listing Department

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Fort Mumbai — 400001

Debt Scrip Code: 974942; ISIN: INEOHCI07011
Dear Sir/Madam,
Sub: Intimation under Regulation 50(2) and Regulation 53(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 - Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 along
with the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Regulation 50(2) and Regulation 53(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We enclose the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-2025 along with the Notice of the 14™ Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held at shorter notice
on Tuesday, September 30, 2025, at 11:30 A.M. (IST).

This is to inform you that the Company on September 29, 2025, has dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company, the Notice convening the 14" Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) of the Company.

We request you to take the above intimation on record.
Thanking You.
Yours’ faithfully

For Earnest Constructions Private Limited
BILIDALE Digitally signed by BILIDALE

MADAIAH Bcte. 20950550 185632

JAYESHANKAR  +0530

B M Jayeshankar

Director

DIN: 00745118

Encl: Annual Report for the FY 2024-25



EARMEST CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U45200KA2011PTC059905
Registered office: No. 2/4, Langford Garden, Richmond Town, Bengaluru 560025 IN
Ph:080-41343400 EMAIL: control@adarshdevelopers.com

NOTICE
Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 14" (Fourteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Earnest Constructions Private Limited will be held on Tuesday, 30" September 2025 at 11:30 AM. w
the Registered Offhice of the Company situated at No# 2/4, Langford Garden, Richmond Town,

Bengaluru 560025 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

TO APPROVE AND ADOPT THE AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
“Ordinary Resolution™:
“RESOLVED THAT the Financial Statements of the Company which include the Audited Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the financial year ended as on that date
and the Cash Flow Statement together with reports of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors
thereon be hereby approved and adopted.™
By the order of the Board of Directors
B. M. Javeshankar
Director
DIN: 00745118
Place: Bangalore New No 6 (old 245)18th cross,
Date: 29.09.2025 Sadashivanagar
Bangalore- 560080
NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy o attend and vote instead of
himself and the proxy need not be a member. Proxies in order 1o be effective must be received by
the company not fater than forty-gight (48) hours before the meetmg. Proxies submitted on behall
of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as
applicable.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company, In case a proxy 1s proposed
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to be appomnted by a Member holding more than 10% of the twotal share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder,

A person can act ag a proxy on behalt of Members not exceeding fifty in number and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights,
A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other
person or sharcholder.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed mentioning
therein details of their Folio No,

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who 1s higher in the order of
names will be enttled to vore at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanyimg Notice and in the Explanatory Statements are
open tor inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered Oftice on all working days of the
Company. during business hours up to the date of the Meeting,

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting
pursuant to Section 113 of the Compames Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a
certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting:

Members secking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write 1o the
Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the
meetng.

The meeting 1s called with consent ol all the members ol the Company.

The audited Financial Statements including Balance Sheet as on 315t March 2025 and Profit and
Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
there on are attached herewith.

Bv the order of the Board of Directors
‘Y&'ﬁ}’ﬁhﬂnkﬂr

Director
DIN: 00745118
New No 6 (old 245)18th cross,

Place: Bangalore Sadashivanagar
Date: 29.09.2025 Bangalore- S60080



Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[ Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45200KAZ01 TP TCO59905
Name of the Company: EARNEST CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED Registered Office: No. 2/4
Langford Garden, Richmond Town, Bengaluru - 560025, Karnataka
E-Mail: CONTROL ml.idart-.hdfveinpt:n ComMm
Name of the member(s)
Remistered address

Registered email 1d
Falio No
No. of shares held

I'We, being the member (5) of the above named company, hereby appoini

L INAmME: i
Address:

E-mal Id:

Signature:.......oea2y or fatling him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mal Id:

Signature:........o..oee0 or tanllimg him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held at shorter notice on Tuesday, 30" September 2025 at 11:30 AM. at No. 2/4 Langtord Garden,
Richmond Town, Bengaluru — 360025, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

1 direct my Proxy to vote on the Resolutions in the manner indicated below:
Sl No.  |Resolution(s) Apgainst
Ordinary Business
1. To approve and adopt the Audited Ammueal Financial Statements for the
- year ended March 31, 2025.

signed this... day of......... 2025, Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Mote: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Mecting.




Attendance Slip
Annual General Meeting

Registered Folio Number

HEEN

Number of Shares held

I certify that T am a member/proxy for the member of the company.

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held at shorter notice on
Tuesday, 30" September 2025 at 11:30 AM.at No. 2/4 Langford Garden, Richmond Town, Bengaluru
— 360125, Karnataka.,

AFFFFEEE R A FAN S F AT IR AR FNRT R AR LRSS R LR L RERRET RS RELEELREETEAEENELRERESEEREELDLR:;

Name of the Member/Proxy Signature of the Member/Proxy

(In BLOCK letters)

Nate: Please fill this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of Meeting Hall, Members
are requested to bring their copies of Notice to the AGM.



Route Map:
Address: No. 2/4 Langford Garden, Richmond Town, Bengaluru — 560025, Karnataka
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1.

EARNEST CONSTRUCTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

2/4, Langford Gardens, Richmond Town, Bengaluru-560 025, India.
Ph:91-80-41343400 | E-mail : control@adarshdevelopers.com

Dear Members,

CIN-U45200KA2011PTC059905

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors hereby present the 14" Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of your company for the financial year ended 315t March,
2025. The Company is a Private Limited Company which has listed its Debentures via Private Placement
and therefore as per the provisions of Companies (Specification of definitions details) Second
Amendment Rules, 2021, via circular dated 19" February 2021 it is not treated as a Listed Company for
the purpose of Companies Act, 2013. The Provisions of SEBI Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Regulations, 2015 are applicable to the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2025.

FINANCIAL/ OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The summary of the Company’s financial performance for the FY 2024-25 as compared to the
previous FY 2023-24 is given below:

(Rs. in Lalkhs)

Particulars Year ended 31 March | Year ended 31%t March
2025 2024

Revenue from operations 744.00 -

Other Income 2.03 1.67

Total Income 746.03 1.67

Less: Total Expenses 4,445.45 525.57

Expenses Transfer to WIP - -

Profit before exceptional and - -

extraordinary items and tax

Profit Before Tax (3,699.42) (523.90)

Less: Tax Expenses

¢  Current Tax - 5

e Deferred Tax = -

e Prior Income Tax - -

Profit/(Loss) after tax (3,699.42) (523.90)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 3,699.42 Lakhs as compared to the previous year’s loss of Rs.
523.90 Lakhs and total revenue of Rs. 744.00 Lakhs for the Current Year when compared to the
previous year’s revenue of Rs. 1.67 Lakhs. There was no change in the nature of business of the

compary.

The Directors of the Company are hopeful of better performance in the years to come.



7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Puring the period under review, there were no changes in the Board’s Composition.

Present Board’s Composition as below -

51 No Directors Designation
1. B M Karunesh Director
2. B M Jayeshankar Director

Further, Ms. Sneha R Jain continued to be the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company.

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors.

The Company was not required to appoint any other Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel as the
Company is a Private Limited Company as per the provisions of Section 203 of The Companies Act,
2013. - '

8. STATUTORY AUDITORS

The members at the 13th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on September 30, 2024, had appointed,
M/s. ALP & Associates, Chaﬁered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 328740FE) to act as the statutory
auditors of the Companty of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of the 13th AGM
till the conclusion of the 18" AGM of the Company to be held in the Year 2028-29.. o

The Company, being a Private Limited Company and as per the provisions of Sé_ction 138 of Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 it was not required to appoint
Internal Auditors for the financial year. : : :
The Company, being a Private Limited Company and as per .th_e provisions of Section 204 of Companies
Act, 2013 it was not required to appoint Secretarial Auditors for the financial year. o

9. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION
(12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT '

There are no frauds reported by the Auditors.

10. BOARD’S COMMENTS ON AUDITORS’ REPORY

The observations of the Auditors in their report read together with the Notes on Accounts are self-
explanatory and therefore, in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation.




18. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company confirms

that-
1.

In preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been foliowed along with proper explanation to material departures;
The Directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and loss of the Company, for that
period.

The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. :

The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure cdmpliance with -the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

19. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Capital of the Company at the end of the Financial Year is Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rs. Ten
Lakhs only) divided into 1,00,000 (One Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten Only) each.

And on the end of Financial Year the Paid-up capital of the Company is Rs. 4,00,000/- (Four Lakhs only)
divided into 40,000 (Foity Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Ten Only) each.

There is no change in the share capital of the company during the financial year under review.

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.

. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.

BONUS SHARES
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review.

. ISSUE OF SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS

The Company under the provision of Section 43 read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 [Chapter IV] has not issued any shares with Differential
Rights.

20. DEPOSIT

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections
73 and 74 of the Act, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force);




C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
There was no foreign exchange inflow or Outflow during the year under review.
24, CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
No Change in the nature of the business of the Company
25. POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION & EMPLOYEES

The provision of section 134(3) (e) 1elat1ng to pohcy on Duectms appomtment and Remuneratlon is not
applicable to the company. : : . . . .

26. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as at March 31, 2025 in Form MGT-7A,
is available on the website of the Company at www.earnestconstructions.com

27, CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The company does not fall under the criteria of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Hence complying with the provisions
of this section does not apply. Therefore, the Annual Report of CSR is not required to be attached.

28. OBLIGATION OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAIL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 READ WITH
THE RULES S D :

Your Directors hereby state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and no
cases are pending for said year ' ' ' : ' '

29. COMPLIANCE WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961 -

The provisions of the Maternity Beneflt Act, 1961, as amended is not apphcable to the
Company.

30. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The details of composition of the Committees of the Board of Directors are as under:-

a. Audit Committee: The Company being a Private Limited Company, the Audit Committee is not
required to be constituted.

b. Vigil mechanism: Thé Company is a Private Limited Company not accepting public deposits not
the Company has any borrowing more than Rs. 50 crores, therefore the establishment of Vigil
Mechanism is not required.




B.M. Jayeshankar

36. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT

THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING
LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF

During the year, there has been no difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along
with the reasons thereof.

37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

We Director place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided by the
Government agencies, customers, vendors, and investors for their wholehearted support during the year
and look forward to their continued support in the years ahead. We Directors’ also express their gratitude
to our Companies’ Employees and Clients for their support. The Directors’ also acknowledge the
outstanding performance, dedicated hard work and co-operation of the employees at all levels and look
forward to your continuing trust in us.

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Karunesh

Director irector

DIN: 00745118 DIN: 00693174

Address: New No. 6, (Old No. 245), 18th Cross, Address: Villa Nod46, Phase I Adarsh Palm
Upper Palace Orchards, Sadashivanagar, Meadows, Varthur road Whitefield
Bangalore-560080 Bangalore-560066

Place: Bangalore
Date: 29.09.2025




AL P& ASSOCiateS 505/1, 3" Floor, 2™ Cross Road

Chartercd Accountants Indiranagar 1" Stage, Off CMH Road
Indiranagar
Bengaluru-560038, Karnataka

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
("the Company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
flows for the vear then ended. and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of material
::af-;ounm:g_)pohclcs and other explanatory information (hercinafier referred to as the “Ind AS financial
statemen

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companics Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted 1n India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, its loss, total comprehensive
income. changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include the

Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othenwise appears to be materally
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s report
To the Members of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, its financial performance, including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit pmcedt}res
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsﬂ?le
for expressing our opinion on Whether the Company has adequate internal financial control with
reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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A L P & Associates

Independent Auditor’s report

To the Members of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements (contin ued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun

; ting policies used and
estimates and related disclosures m

the reasonableness of accounting
ade by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are req
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are bas
the date of our auditor’s report. However,
cease to continue as a going concern.

going concern basis of accounting and,
uncertainty exists related to events or
ability to continue as a going concern. If
uired to draw attention in our auditor’s
statements or, if such disclosures are
ed on the audit evidence obtained up to
future events or conditions may cause the Company to

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
we identify during our audit.

among other matters, the planned scope and
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the said
Order is not applicable to the Company. Hence the same is not furnished.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the incidence of loss of data as detailed in
note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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A L P & Associates

Independent Auditor’s report
To the Members of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

e.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are

as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (B)(f) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g).

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the
company and operating effectiveness of 'such controls are given in separate Annexure-A

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

a.

b.

€.

The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31 March 2025.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025,

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 29 (iv)(A) to the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 29 (iv)(B) to the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable an_d appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been paid or declared during the year by the Company.
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A L P & Associates

Independent Auditor’s report
To the Members of Earnest Constructions Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

f. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the financial year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for the period during the incidence of loss of
data as detailed in note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit,
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. Thc_pro\'isions of section 197 read with schedule V of the act are applicable only to public Company.
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the act is not applicable to the Company.

For A L P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no- 328740E

N (ol Dygr-f\\o o)
Nidish Agarw
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Membership no- 300962

Date: 27 May 2025

UDIN: 25300962BMIPMY3453
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A L P & Assoclatos

Anncaure A to the Independent Anditor's Report on the Ind AS Finnnelnl Statements of Earnest
Constructions Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)D under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

We have andited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financinl statements of Earnest
Constructions Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS finnncial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management®s Responsibility for Internnl Finnneinl Controls

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financinl Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICA1™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and cfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial with
reference to Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to Ind
AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial control, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating cffectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS

financial statements of the Company
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A L P & Associates

Annexure A (continued)
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company:(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March
2025 based on the internal control over financial reporting with reference to Ind AS financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For A L P & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no- 328740E

Nidish Agarwal
Partner
Membership no- 300962

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 27 May 2025

UDIN: 25300962BMIPMY3453
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Earnest Constenetions Peivite 1 lmlted
CAR200IA 201 110 1 COAInA

24 Lo boed Garden 1iethmond Town Bangalore-86i1)2 4

Balunee Sheet
AMEamounes i INR Takhs nnless ofhenyise statedd

ASSETS

Non-current nssels
Other non current assets
Fotal non enrrent nssets

Current assets

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

() Bank balance other than (1) above
() Loans

() Other Financial Assets

Other enrrent assets

Total enrrent assels

TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current linbilities
Financinal linbilities

(1) Borrowings

Total non current linhilities

Current linbilities
Financial Linbilities
(1) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues ol micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues ol ereditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(11) Other financial liabilities
Other current linbilities
Total current linbilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

FFer AL & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Repistration No 3287405

N ednds HM"" o)
Nidish Agarwal
Partner
Membership No:300962

Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru
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12

Annl Al
S Mwreh 2024 S Murel 2024
353

o 3.53

25 K1 429
27.17 2561
13,051.0% 15,247 03
264.79 286 44
30,870,604 22,926.06
44,243,406 38,489,143
T4,200.40 38,492.95
4.00 4,00
(4,306.44) (607.02)
(4,302.44) (603.02)
42,786.74 34.870.13
42,786.74 34,870.13
0.05 z
5,728.42 4,163.52
30.69 62.32
5,759.16 4,225.84
44.243.46 38,492.95

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R Jayeshankar
Director
DIN:00745118

IN:00693174

Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
1

netfi R Jain
Company Secretary & Compliance Otficer
Membership No : A40368
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I".m'ncn Constructions Private Limited
U45200KA2011PTC059905

2/4 Langford Garden Richmond Town Bangalore-560025
Statement of Profit and 1.oss

All amounts in INIR lakhs unless otherwise stated

, For the year ended  For the year ended
Note

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 13 744.00 -
Other Income 14 2.03 1.67
Total income 746.03 1.67
Expenses
Cost of materials 15 580.27 -
Financial Costs 16 3,759.00 477.79
Depreciation and Amortization Expense g 2
Other expenses 17 106.18 47.78
Total expenses 4,445.45 325.57
Loss before tax (3,699.42) (523.90)
Tax expense:

- Current tax - =

- Deferred tax = =
Loss after tax (3,699.42) (523.90)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss = -
ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - =
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,699.42) (523.90)
Loss per share (ordinary equity shares, par value Rs 10 each) 18

- Basic (Rs. per share) (9,248.54) (1,309.75)

- Diluted (Rs. per share) (9,248.54) (1,309.75)
Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For ALP & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Earnest Constructions Private Limited

Firm Registration No.328740E

KA byao

Nidish Agarwal

B.M. Jayeshankar NIT Karunesh

Puartner ’ Director irector
Membership No:300962 DIN:00745118 DIN:00693174
Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

~

-~

Sneha R Jain
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No : A40368



Earnest Constenetiony Private Limited
LS00 A0 L COSI008
200 L ford Gaeden Richmond Town Wangnlore-S60028

Stntement of Cnash Flows
A amonnts i INRCTkhs ninless othens ise stted

Cash Flow From Operating Aetivities
Loss hefore ta
Qdiisiments o reconcile foss defore tax 1o et cash used in opevating activities
P'reliminany expenses written ol
Finanee costs
Operating loss hefore working eapital chnnges
Working capital adjustmenty
Change in Trade Paxables
Change in Other current liability
Change in Other Current Assets
Change in Other financinl asset
Change in financial lability
Net cash ows from operating activities belore taxes
Income tax paid
Net eash lows from operating activities

Cash Nows from financing netivities
Loans (given) / received
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayvment of borrowings
Equity Share Capital
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in eash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of eash and cash equivalents (refer note 2 & J)
Balances with bank

- in current accounts

Cash on hand

Bank deposits

Deposit

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
For ALP & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.328740E

Ndobh Moo oS

A S——

Asat
M Murch 2025

As at
31 March 2024

(3,699.12) (523.90)
3.5 .
3,759.00 471.79
6301 (36.11)
0.08 -
(31.63) 59.25
(7.937.13) (4.141.84)
17.65 (3.61)
. (123.80)
(7,887.94) (4,256.11)
(7.46) (0.04)
(7.895.39) (4.256.15)
2,195.98 (15.247.03)
22,329.06 33.802.98
(15.096.57) (19.432.28)
(2.061.28) 3.132.83
7,367.19 4.256.52
(528.21) 0.37
29.90 29.53
(498.31) 29.90
24.53 349
1.28 0.80
27.17 23.61
52.98 39.90

For and on behalt of the Board of Directors

Nidish Agarwal
Partner
Membership No:300962

Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru

LML Jayeshankar
Director
DIN:00745118

DIN:00693174

Date: 27 May 2025 Date: 27 May 2023
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Sneha R Jain
Company Secretary & Compliance Ofticer
Membership No : A40368
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Earnest Constructions Private Limited
UdS200KA2011PTC059905

2/4 Langford Garden Richmond Town Bangalore-560025
Notes to the financial statements

All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated |

a)

h)

c)

d)

ii)

Company background
Eamest Constructions Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a private company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 on
08 August 2011. The Company is engaged in the business of Property development & Land Acquisition.

Material accounting policies:

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance to Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the act’) and other relevant provisions of the act.

These financial statements have been prepared for the company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the
Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2025. These financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on
27 May 2025,

Functional and presentation currency

These tinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency and the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in [ndian Rupees has been rounded off to nearest lakh.
unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
values (refer accounting policies regarding financial instrument),

Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no urconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Earnest Constructions Private Limited
U45200KA2011PTC059905

2/4 Langford Garden Richmond Town Bangalore-560028
~otes to the financial statements

All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated .

iii) Measurement of Fair Values

iii)

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets

and liabilities Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date The fair value measurement is based on the presumptiaon that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the

hability takes place either

- In the principal market for the assct or lability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lahility
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability 15 measured usmngz the

The principal or the most
ould use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

assumptions that market participants w
interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset

in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measurz fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company engages with external valuers
for measurement of fair values in the absence of quoted prices in active markets.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are catezornised mto
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1.e. as prices) or indirectly

(1.¢. derived from pnices).
Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in 115
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the changes has
occurred.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from operation : Revenue from real estate under development/ sale of developed property will be recognized upon transfer of all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of such real estate/ property, as per the terms of the contracts/ agreements, except for contracts whers
the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the transfer of all significant risks and rewards. In such cases, the revenue
will be recognized on percentage of completion method, when the stage of completion of each project reaches a significant level which 1s estimated
to be at least 25% of the total estimated construction cost of the Project. Revenue is recognized in proportion that the contract costs incurred for
work performed up 1o the reporting date bear to the estimated total contract costs.

Other income : Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment
Propenty, plant and equipment are stated at the cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be) of acquisition or construction, less accumulared

depreciation and impairment if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method (SLM) over the useful lives of assets estimated by
Management. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the Management believes that its estimates of useful lives as gl\cn‘bclo\\ best
represent the period over which Management expects 1o use these assets. The identificd components are depreciated separately over their useful
life, the remaining components are depreciated separately over their useful life, )
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U45200KA2011PTCO529058
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Noates to the financial statements
All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated

iv)

v)

Vi)

vii)

Emplovee benefits

Gratmty: The Company provides for gra
Payvment of Gratuity {Amendment) Act.
tncapacitation or termination of employment. ol an amour
Company’s liability is actuanally determined (using the I’
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise

tuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering eligihle employees in accoedance with the
2018 The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested emplayees at retirement, death

1t based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment The
rojected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year Actuarial losses/ gans are

cumulated compensated absences, which are expected 10 be availed or encashed within |2 manths from the end of the
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cont of accumulating
a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end

Compensated Absences: Ac
vear end are treated as short term employee benefits. The
compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as

ccted to be availed or encashed beyond 12 manths from the end of the year are treated as other

Accumulated compensated absences, which are exp
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit methad) at the end of each year

long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
Actuarial losses’ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise

The provisions of the Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 are currently not applicable to the Company

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or productivity of qualifying assets arc capitalized as part of the cost of such
assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity ncurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial assets or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),

transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost:

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - debt investment;

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - equity investment; or

- Fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

Qn initial recF}‘gnition qi'an cquity_invcstmcnt that is not held for trading, the Company may irrecoverably elect to present subsequent changes in
investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOC] - equity investment). The election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All ﬁn_ancnaj assets nn?t ‘cllassiﬁcd as measured al amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivatve
financial assets. Qll initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
m'casur::d at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL it doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.




Earnest Constructions Private Limited
U45200KA2011PTC059905
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Notes to the financial statements

All amounts in INR lakhs unless otherwise stated

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to the management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether management's strategy
focuses on eaming contractual interest income, mainta ning a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial asset to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management,

- the risk that effects the performance of the business model (and the financial assct held within that business model) and how those risks are
- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected: and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of the financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent
with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate futures;

- prepayments and extension features; and

- terms that limits the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features)

A prepavment feature is consistent with the solely payment of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents
unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature
that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement

of profit and loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost :

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in staternent of profit and loss.

Debt investments at FVTOCI:
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses are

recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other net gains aid !hsses are recognised in OCI On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments at FVYTOC/:

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of
profit and loss.

Financial liabilities : Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-
for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effc/l:}fiﬁvpl"! ﬁjErFaL method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in statement of

profit and loss. Any gain or loss on dergcoy irTJri‘!}{ls{) recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Ho.24  Nw
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Financial Instruments (continued)

iii. Derecognition

Financial Assers

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contr
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which subst
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains suttantially
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets reco,
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

\etual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
antially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
all of the risks and rewards of the ownership and does not retain control of the

gnised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all the risks

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the extinguished liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

viii) Impairment of assets
a. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 365 days or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that in the material assessment of the Company it would not consider otherwise:
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or the other financial reorganization; or )
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12
month expected credit losses: - i
- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
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Impairment of assets (continued)

a. Impairment of financial instruments (continued)

Loss allowances for the financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of assets. Loss allowances for
trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected hfe of a financial
instrument,

12-months expected credit losses are the portion of exprected credit loss that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months)

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk,

When determining whether the eredit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward- looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due The Company
considers a financial asset to be in detault when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 365 days or past due without any secunity.

Measurement of expected credit losses: Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for the financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could gznerate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of the amounts due.

il. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. If anv indication xists. or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its
recoverable unit. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of anv goodwill allecated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group
that generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognisad in the statement of profit and
loss, unless it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot he tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assers that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely indzpzndent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impaiment loss in respect
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other ascets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s camrving amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impainment loss had been recognised.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation us a result of past event, it is probable that an outtlow of resources embodyving
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Bulance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value,

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by

-the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that

arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made,
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x)

xi)

xii)

Taxation
Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period.
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable profit for the year computed in accordance with the provisions of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax
assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual/reasonable certainty (as applicable) that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. In situations, where the Company has unabsorbed

depreciation or carry forward losses under tax laws, all deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported
by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised

deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate

to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/loss per equity share is arrived at based on profit/loss for the year divided by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for all the effects of all dilutive potential

equity shares.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the

Company are segregated.

xiii) Errors and estimates

xiv)

The Company revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the financial statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to statement of profit and
loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change.

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior

period in which the error is discovered.

Segment Reporting
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Company. Further, inter-

segment revenue is accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between segments which is primarily market based. Revenue and
expenses is identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate
to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, are included under “Unallocated corporate expenses/income™.
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(A) Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4.00
Changes in Fquity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 4.00
Add: Addition during the period -
Less: Buyback of shares =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4.00
Changes in Equin Share Capital due to prior period errors z
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 4.00
Add: Addition during the period =
Less: Buyback of shares =
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4.00

(B) Other equity

Reserve and Surplus Total
Particulars

Retained

earnings
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (83.11) (83.11)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - =
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period (83.11) (83.11)
Loss for the vear (523.90) (523.90)
Qthar compraheansive income for the vear - -
Eguin conwibution from holding company = N
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (607.02) (607.02)
Chaness in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restared balance at the beginning of the current reporting period (607.02) (607.02)
Loss for the vear (3.699.42) (3,699.42)
Other com 1sive income for the vear - -
Equiny conuiburion from holding company - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (4,306.44) (4,306.43)

The notes referrad to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even darte antached
For ALP & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.3287%

Nidish Agarwal
Partner
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Date: 27 May 2025
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Date: 27 Nlay 2023
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Other Non Current Assets

Particulars

Asal
31 March 2025

As .dl
21 Mareh 2024

i1 -
}.53

Others il /it
Total - 483
Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 Mareh 2024

Balances with bank
- in current accounts 24.53 3.49
Cash on hand 1.28 0.40
Total 25.41 4.29
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Ay at Aw at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Bank deposits
Deposit 27.17 25.61
Total 27.17 25.61
Loans
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans to related parties (refer note 21) 13,051.05 15.247.03
Total Loans 13,051.05 15,247.03
Other current financial assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Land Advances 264.00 281.70
Interest receivables 1.54 1.48
Advances to suppliers 3.25 3.26
Total 268.79 2806.44
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Land 30,861.61 22,909.56
Income Tax Refundable - 10,91
Advance for registration charges - 4.01
TDS Receivable 9.03 1.57
Total 30,870.64 22,926.06
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a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

]

ll".quil_v share capital

_ As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Authorized

1.00.000 (31 March 2024 1.00.000) equity shares of INR 10 each 10.00 1000

Issued. subscribed and paid-up

20,000 (31 March 2024 40,000) equity shares of INR 10 each. fully paid up 4.00 4.00

Total 4.00 4.00

Notes:

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding al the heginning and at the end of the reporting vear:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of Amount Number of Amount

shares shares

Equity shares

At the commencement of the year 40,000 4.00 40,000 4.00

Add: 1ssue duning the vear - i w -

Less: Buvback duning the vear - & - .

At the end of the vear 40,000 4.00 40.000 4.00

The rights. preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event of liquidation of the company. the equity share holders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The disibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders. The dividend proposed by the Board of

irectors if anv is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting except in the case of interim dividend.

Shareholders holding more than 5% of equitv shares of the Company:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Adzrsh Developers rep. by B.M Jayeshankar 30,000 75% 30,000 75%
B M Jaysshankar 9,999 25% 9.559 23%
39,999 100% 39,999 100%

There zre no bonus shares issued. no shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash and no shares bought back
during the period of since inception till the reporting date.

The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestments.
Shareholding of Promoters

As at 31 March 2025

Eguiry Shares
Name of the promoters No.of Shares % of total % change
shares during the year
Adarsh Developers rep. by B.M.Jayeshankar 30,000 75.00% -
B M Javeshankar 9.999 25.00% -
As at 31 March 2024
Equity Shares
Name of the promoters No.of Shares % of total % change
o - shares during the vear
Adarsh Developers rep. by B.M Jayeshankar 30,000 75.00% -
B M Javeshankar 9,999 25.00% -

Larglond Gan
Richmong Towr. | o
Bangalunr25 /.
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8§ Other equity®

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Retained earnings (4.306.44) (607.02)
Opening balance (607.02) (S_S‘.I 1)
(+) Net Profiv(Net Loss) For the current year (3.699.42) (523.90)
Total of other equity (4,306.44) (607.02)

¥ For detailed movement of reserves refer Statement of changes in equity.

Nature of components of other equity

Retained earnings: The cumulative g
accumulated under the he
statement of profit and loss to retained earnings.

9 Non-current borrowings

vin or loss arising (rom the operations which is retained by the Company is recognised and
ading of retained earnings. At the end of the year, the total profit / loss for the year is transferred from the

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured
India Special Situation Scheme 18,421.29 31,448.70
32,000 Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs.57,151.42 each
PY: 32,000 Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs.1,00,000 each
(refer note below)
Linsecured
Loans from related parties:
(Refer Note 21)
Adarsh Developers 533.83 896.11
Akarsh Residence Private Limited 628.80 334.00
Akarsha Realty Private Limited 1,803.88 691.20
Orchid Apartments Private Limited 7,124.50 1,300.13
Shivakar Developers Private Limited 14,274.44 -
Total 42,786.74 34,870.13

Security, repayment terms and interest terms

Nature:

Secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of the face value of INR 57,151.42 (INR Fifty Seven Thousand One Hundred and
Fifty One and Forty Two Paisa) (PY: INR 1,00,000 Indian Rupees One Lakh) each in one tranche for an aggregate nominal value of
INR 320,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three Hundred and Twenty Crores).

Terms of repayment and interest rate:

Rate of Interest : The Company shall pay the Interest to the Debenture Holders at the Interest Rate on each Interest Payment Date.
Provided that there will be a moratorium on payment of !*erest which shall accrue until completion of the first 12 (tw'elve) month
period (“Moratorium End Date™) from the Deemed Date of Allotment (“Interest Moratorium Amount™). The Company shall pay the
outstanding Interest Moratorium Amount on or before the end of the 21st (twenty first) month from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Duration : 48 months from the deemed date of allotment ‘Q,
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Sceurity: ‘
1.All that picce and parcel of land admeasuring to

229 Acres 95 Guntas situated at Gunjur Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore Fast Taluk

ge. Varthur Hohli. Bangalors Fast Taluk

b 1 Acre 32 Guntas situated a1 Doddakannelli Villa
ur Hohli. Rangalore Fast Taluk, Rangalors ['rhan District

c.18 Acres 0.25 Guntas situated at Gunjur Village, Varth
d.1 Acre 75 Guntas situnted at Chikkanayakanaha
.13 Acres 175 Guntas situated at Chikkanayakan
{2.038 Acres situated at Hadosiddapura Village. Varthur Hohli, Bangale

3 Acres 0.$25 Guntas situated at Chikkanayakanahalli Village, Varthur |
Varthur Hobli. Bangalore East Taluk, Bangalare [rban Dis

yre Fast Taluk, Bangalore 'rban District

E
h.2 Acres 0.175 Guntas at Chikkenalli,

i 23 Acre 0.1 Guntas situated at Chikkanayakanahalli Village, Varthur Hobli, Bangalore F
illage. Varthur Hobli. Bangalore East Taluk. Bangalore ['rban Mistrict
ore District

Pt

i.3.10 ncres situated at Hadosiddapura V
L7 Acres |7 Guntas situnted at Chikkanneli Village, Varthur Hobli. Rangalore Fast Taluk. Bangal
I.Hypothecation of receivables from the projects : Adarsh Tropica located at Chikkanay akanahalli. Bangalorz

Chikkenahalli located at CHikkenalli. Bangalore

Reconciliation in liahiliti
changes as per Ind As 7- Statement of cash flows are shown below:

i Village. Varthur Hohli. Bangalore Fast Taluk. Bangalore U rhan Mistrict
ahalli Village. Varthur Hohli, Bangalors East Taluk. Bangalore Uthan District

fobli. Bangalors Fast Taluk, Bangalors Urban District

ast Taluk. Bangalore Urban District

& Adarsh

es arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non- cash

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance of barrowings 34.870.13 19.050.74
Issue of NCDs - 32.000.00
22.329.06 3.802.98

Inter company borrowing availed
Inter company borrowing repaid

Unsecured borrowing repayment
Secured borrowing repavment

(1.385.03)

(15.711.54)

(19.432.28)

IND AS effect 132.83 (551.30)
Closing balance of borrowings 42,235.45 34,870.13
Trade Payable

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Related party

- Others 0.035 &
Total 0.0 -
Other current financial liabilities

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 20235

31 March 2024

Advance received from vendor
Trade Payable .

Payable for expenses 1.38 1.58
Interest Accrued but not due 5,726.84 4 Ibl-;H
Total 5,728.42 4,163.52
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at \s at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory dues Payable 30.69 62.32
Total 30.69 62.32
i:'—'-:'—:‘n
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13 Revenue from Operations

Farticulars

e e e

Income from sale’services
Kale of land

Total e T

14 Other Income

For the vear ended

kA \1:I_r(‘h 025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

744.00

74400

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income on bank deposits 1.81 1.67
Intercst income on income tax refund 0.22 -
Interest income on loan - -
Total 2.03 1.67

15 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Costof Land

580.27

Total

580.27

1o Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Interest on loan*

3,759.00

477.79

Total

3,759.00

477.79

*CY - Rs 2624.11 lakhs ; PY: includes interest income netted off amounting to Rs 2563.53 lakhs

17 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Advertisement 2.94 2.19
Audit Fee (refer note 20) 1.753 1.78
Bank Charges 0.01 0.03
Brokerage & Commission % 10.00
Computer Software & Hardware 0.00 0.11
Documents & Other Expenses 0.51 0.07
Khatha Charges - 0.51
Listing Fee - 0.70
Office Maintenance - 0.04
Preliminary Expenses W/o 3.53 -
Professional Charges 16.56 17.43
Printing & Stationery 0.06 -
Property Tax 0.92 0.2+
Rates & Taxes 0.17 3.36
Registration Charges 6-1.20 3.74
TDS Late Payment Interest AARUS 15.53 7.53
- 106.18 47.78

Total

o

Bengalunu-ds /.

"n!gl'ardﬁa.'d;u Y
chmond Town j .7




Earnest Constructions Private Limited
U45200KA201IPTC0S990%

Notes to the financial statements

All amounts in TNR 1akhs unless otherwiee stated

18

Farnings (loss) per share (EPS)
(Tost) for the vear attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of

Rasic FPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit
shares outstanding during the vear Diluted FPS amoamte are caleulated by dividing the profit (logs) attributable 1o thareholders by the weighted
averace number of sharee putstanding durmng the vear plus the werghted average number of shares that would be 1ssued on conversion of all the

dilutive potential shares into share capital

The following table sete forth the computation of bate and diluted eammgs per share in relation to ordinary equity shares
TParticulars S ) For the _;‘T:l_t‘ ended  For the year ended
31 March 1025 31 March 2024
Profit (1.oss) after tay (3,609 42) (313 90)
Nomimal value of equity shares (INR per share) 10 10
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic earmings per share 10,000 10 000
1oss per <hare [Basic] (INR) (7.248.54) (1.309.75)
Profit (Loss) after tax (3.699 42) (523 90)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share 40,000 40,000
1oss per share [Diluted] (INR) (7,248.54) (1.300.75)
Note For vear ending 31 March 2025, the potential equity shares on conversion of equity shares are anti-dilutive in nature and hence not

considered for the purpose of diluted EPS

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent hahilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable

estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contingent Liabilities:

A Qutstanding guarantees and Counter Guarantees to various banks, in

respect of the guarantees given by those banks in favor of various

government authorities and others :

i Guarantess given by the company on behalf of subsidiaries

ii. Aggregate value of other Guarantees outstanding as follows:

1. Varin infra projects priavte limited - 16,519.00

2. Shreshta Apartments Private Limited - 17,25%.00

3. Adarsh Ecstacy Projects Private Limited 12,300.00 35,843.00

4. Shivakar Infra Private Limited - 12,481.00

5. Shivakar Developers Private Limited 1,500.00 10,937.00

6. Akarsha Realty Private Limited 27,400.00 64,.887.00

Payvment to auditors (excluding goods and service tax)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2024

Particulars
As Auditor

- Statutory audit L;73 1.78
Out of pocket expenses = -
Total .75 1.78
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

Related party disclosures
Details of transactions with related parti

es dunng the vear as required by Ind AS 24 on ‘Related Party Disclosures” have been disclosed

on the basis of parties identified by the management to be within the definition of related parties as per the Standard and noted by the

Board

Key managerial personnel

Name

Relationship

B M Javeshankar
B M Karuncsh

Ihrector

Mhrector

Related parties where control exists irrepsective of whether transactions have nccurred or not

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Akarsh Residence Private Limited

Akarsha Realy Private Limited
Orchid Apartments Private Limited
Shivakar Developers Private Limited
Vismava Developers Private Limited

Adarsh Developers (A Partnership Firm)

Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Name of related party

Nature of relationship

Akarsh Residence Private Limited
Akarsha Realtv Private Limited
Orchid Apartments Private Limited
Shivakar Developers Private Limited
Vismava Developers Private Limited

Adarsh Developers (A Partnership Firm)

Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company
Associate Company

Related party transactions

Name of related party Nature of Transaction For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Adarsh Developers Loan repaid back 829.39 19,432.28
Adarsh Developers Loan received 467.11 1,277.635
Akarsh Residence Private Lid Loan received 133.65 534.00
Akarsh Residence Private Ltd Loan repaid back 38.85 -
Orchid Aparuments Private Limited Loan received 6,303.12 1,300.13
Orchid Apartments Private Limited Loan repaid back 480.74 -
Akarsha Realty Private Limited Loan received 1,148.74 691.20
Akarsha Realty Private Limited Loan repaid back 36.03 -
Shivakar Developers Private Limited | Loan received 14,274.44 -
Vismaya Developers Private Limited | Loan received 6,019.85 216.51
Vismaya Developers Private Limited | Advance given 3.821.73 15,463.54
Amount Outstanding at the Balance Sheet Date
Name of related party Nature of Transaction As at As at
31 March 2025] 31 March 2024
Adarsh Developers Louans & Advances from Related Parties © Unsecured 533.83 896.11
Akarsh Residence Private Limited Loans & Advances from Related Parties : Unsecured 628,80 534,00
Akarsha Realty Private Limited Loans & Advances from Related Parties : Unsecured 1,803.88 691.20
Orchid Apartments Private Limited Loans & Advances from Related Parties | Unsecured 7,124.50 1,300.13
Shivakar Developers Private Limited Loans & Advances rom Related Parties : Unsecured 14,274 44 -
Vismaya Developers Private Limited I.pq,ﬁ'{@?&}:giccs o Related Parties : Unsecured ———13,051.05 15.247.03
=
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23

Dues 40 micrn, small and medinm enterprises
P i (W P
Disclosure of dues / payments 10 Micro and small enterpr any under Mictn

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (° VISMED Act’) are as follows

ises 1o the extent such enterprises are identified hy the comp

Particulars Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

The amount remainimg unpaid to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as at the end of the

accounting vear

-Principal

-Interest due thereon

The amount of principal and interest paid to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises heyond

appointed date during the year

-Principal o

-Interest due thereon .

The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but - -

interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid)

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at balance sheet date i

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date - -

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

a) Primary (Business) Segment

Seement Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(*CODM™) of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company operates only in one Business Segzment, hence
does not have any reportable Segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments™.

'As the Company’s business consists of one reportable business segment and hence, no separate disclosure pertaining to attnbutable
Revenues, Profits, Assets, Liabilities and Capital employed are given.

The Company operates only in India. Hence no disclosure is considered necessary on the bais of geographies.

b) Geographical Information:

The Company is engaged in the business of providing main business of haspitality services & also engaging real estate business which is
located in India only, No other geographical business segment and hence business segments have not been reported under this head.

Rickmend Tow1
Bengalun-d
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(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose 1110 2 variety of financial risks: market nsk, credit nsk and

unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimze potenhial adverse effects on s financial perform
overall responsibility for the establishment andl oversight of the Company's nisk management framewaork The Campany's risk management policies are

established to identify and analyse the reks faced by the Company, to set appropriate nsk liimits and contrala and to maonitar risks and adherence to limits
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed replarly to reflect changes i market conditions and the Company'1 activities. The Company, theenigh
its training and management standards and procedures, ams o maintam a disciplined and construchve contral environment in which all employees

umderstand their roles and obligations

liquidaty nisk The Company's primary focus 13 to foresee the
ance “The Campany's Board of Directors has

Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss t
anses principally from the Company ‘s recerva
prevent losses in financial assels The Com
expenence and other factors The carmying amoun
other bank balances is limited Th
Kk associated with such deposits is relatively low,

o the Company il a customer of counterparty o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual ohhipations, and
bles from customers, loans and other financial assets The objective of managing counterparty credit sk 15 to
pany nssesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking nto account their financial pasition, past
1 of finaneial asset represent the maximunm credit exposure

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and e other financial liability represents securnty depasits given for rental

premises to operate the business The credit ns!

(a) Trade, investments and other receivahbles
The Company’s exposure to credit nsk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Company monitors and limits its
exposure to credit nsk on a continuous basis To manage this the Company periodically reviews the financial reliability of its customers, taking into
account the financial condition, current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of trade receivables. The Company has nil

outstanding receivable as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Nil). Therefore, the Company has not provided for any expected credit loss on its trade
recevables as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Nil)

(b) Investments and cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash cquivalents of INR 52,98 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 29.90 lakhs) The cash and cash equivalents are

held with bank with good credit ratings. Company has nil investment as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

{c) Loans

Estimated Expected Expected Carrying
Risk assessment As at gross carrying | Probability of P amount, net of
credit loss B
amount at default provision
Liang Risk same since 31-Mar-25 13,051.05 * - 13,051 03
initial recognition 31-Mar-24 15,247.03 - - 1524703

Liguidiry risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk is managed by Company through effective fund management of the Company’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
other borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities. The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted:

Maturitv analvsis of significant financial liahilities
As at 31 March 2025

Carrying Within 1 year 1-5 years More than 5

Particulars
amount years
(1) Borrowings 42,786.74 - 30,604.01 12,182.73
5,728.42 5,728.42 5 -

(i) Other financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2024

Carrying Within I year 1-5 years More than §

Particulars
TE : amount vears
j) Borowings 34,870.13 - 14,735.43 11,868.68
(i) Other financial liabilities 4,163.52 , 4163.52 Bl A

Market risk
Markr..t risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial in-irument will {1 b of ch in market prices. Market nisk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.The objective of market risk management 15 to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn,

A. Currency risk
f*?;:l@ clu:cncy risk is L.Iu: .l'f'Sk lha'l thle fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
“ompany does not have significant foreign currency exposure and hence, is not exposed to any significant foreign currency nsk

B. Interest rate risk
Inter isk i Qi Il ial i
Comcst latle risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
nuc[ga[.rliy is exposed o interest rate nisk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets The Company does not have
uating interest bearing assets and/or borrowings, therefore, it 1s not exposed to fluctuations in market risks
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25 (Capital management
. The Company aims to manage s capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability
Management monitors the returm on capital as well as the debt equity ratio and make necessary

the business The capntal structure of the Company 15 based on management's judgement of the

strategic and day - to - day needs

1o caniimue as A gOINg concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders
adjustments in the capital structure for the development of
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its

The Company’s adiusted net debt to equity ratio 1s as follows
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 1025 31 March 2024
Total habilities 19,095 97
Less Cash and cash equnalents 2990
Adjusted debt 48,492.92 39,066.07
Total equity (603 02)
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (6:4.78)
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(M

(i)

(iii)

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments by category

The cartving value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31

March 2025 & 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Financial Assets*

Amortized Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 52.98 29.90
(ii) Loans 13,051.05 15,247.03
(iii) Other financial assets 268.79 1:86.44
Total financial assets 13,372.82 15,563.37
Financial Liabilities*
Amortized Cost
(i) Borrowings 42,786.74 34,870.13
(i1) Other financial liabilities 5,728.42 4.163.52
48,515.16 39,033.65

Total financial liabilities

* Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (that are measured at amortised cost) closely approximate their carrying value.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgment and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are: (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. as derived prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities is as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 Carryving amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 52.98 - = -

(i1) Loans 13,051.05

(iii) Other financial assets 268.79 - i "
Total financial assets 13,372.82 - - -
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

(i) Borrowings 42,786.74 - g =

(ii) Other financial liabilities 5,728.42 - - -
Total financial liabilities 48,515.16 = = 5
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 29.90 - - -

(i1} Loans 15,247.03 - = s

(iii) Other financial assets 286.44 " - -
Total financial assets 15,563.37 = i P
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

(1) Borrowings 34,870.13 - - -

(ii) Other financial liabilities 4,163.52 - 2 =

Total financial liabilities

29,033.65

Fair valuation method

Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data, If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level
2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the current year and previous years,
There are no financial instruments which are carried at fair gl{rﬁm zh other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
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27  Income Tax

a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss consists of:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars
b 31 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024

(i) Amounts recogniced in profit and loss
Current income taxes
In respect of the current peried
In respect of the earlier period

Deferred taves
In respect of the current period

(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Current income taxes
In respect of the current period

Deferred taxes
In respect of the current period -

Total - _

b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss before tax (3,699.42) (523.90)
Enacted income tax rate in India 26.00% 26.00%
Computed expected tax expense - -
Tax effect of:
Mat credit entitlement - .
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was created - =
Income tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss = -

¢) Unrecognised deferred tax asset / (liability)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Gross amount DTA/DTL Gross amount DTA/DTL
Borrowings (132.83) - 34.54 551.30 143.34
- 34.54 143.34
Deferred tax asset
Carry forward losses 3,183.07 827.60 111310 289.93
3,183.07 827.60 1,115.10 289.93
Unreccognised DTA 862.13 146.39
d) Tax losses expiry tenure
: As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Gross amount  Expiry period Gross amount Expiry period
Carried forward business loss 3,183.07 2029-2033 111510 2028-2032

Total 3,183.07 L115.10

&
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28 Expenditnre on Corporate Soclal Responsibility activities
Since the Company does not meet the critenin specified i section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to spend any amount on activities
related 1o corporate social responsibility for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

20 Additional Regulatory Information
(1) Benami Property Transactions
There are no proceedings that have been initinted or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Fransactions Act, 1988 (ns amended from time to time) (carlier Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988) and the rules made thereunder

(i) Transaction with struck-oft Company
The Company does not have any transactions or balances with struck ofl' Companies.

(i) Specified layers declaration
The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

Rules, 2017, and there are no companies bevond the specilied layers,

(iv) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium
A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (cither borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™); or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries;

(B) Date and amount of fund further advanced or loaned or invested other intermediaries or Ultimate Beneficiaries alongwith complete details of the other

intermediaries” or ultimate beneficiarics,

Name of the entity to whom funds Amount Closing Balance as Date of advancement Identification number of the entity
advanced * advanced (Rs.in  on to whom advanced
Lakhs) 31.03.2025(Rs.in
Lakhs)
Vismava Developers Private Limited 17.523.45 13.051.05 27-Jun-23 CIN-U45300KA2011PTC059836
Orchids Apartment Private Limited 14.476.55 7.124.50 27-Jun-23 CIN-U45201KA1981PTC00+086

* Registered address of both the entities is 2/4 Langford Garden Richmond Town Bangalore - 560025

(v) Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax

assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). Further, there was no
previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of account during the year.

(vi) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. Further, the Company has also

not received any deposits or advances from any person for the purpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency.

(vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender
(viii) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis

of security of current assets.
(ix) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an ac:ourting impact on current or pervious year.
(x) The Company has not revalued it's Property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year.
(xi) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
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Ratio analvsis and its elements

" : E Asat As at i Reasons for
sl SURTIATNERY PeraminAior 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 ° vATlanee | riance
Current ratio Current assets Current habihities 768 91l -16% Note-1
Debt-equity ratio Total debt Sharcholder's equity (994) (5783) -83% Note-2
Retumn on equity ratio Net profits after taxes-preference  Average shareholders 1 51 | 54 -2% NA
dividend equity

The Company has not disclosed debt service coverage, inventory turnover, trade receivable, trade payable. net capital, net profit. return on capital emplayed and return
on investment ratos as it s not applicable

Note-1 Inerease 1n Current Matunties of Long-term Borrowings and other current liabilities as at 31 March 2025 as compared to 31 March 2024 lead to variance in
current ratiy

Note-2  Inerease in losses as at 31 March 2025 as compared to 31 March 2024 lead to variance in debt -equity ratio
P

Loss of data

During the vear. there has been an incidence of loss of Data from the cloud services which has critically impacted the Company’s operations  The incident has affected
the Compam's financial data

Subsequenlty. the Company has recovered its data The Company has made necessary updates to BSE Limited i accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

As per our report of even date attached
For ALP & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 328740E

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Earnest Constructions Private Limited

Nidish Agarwal
Partner
Membership No:300962

B.M. Jayeshankar
Director
DIN:00745118

. Karunesh
irector
DIN 00693174

Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 May 2025
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 27 May 2023
Place: Bengaluru

Srcha R Jain  ~ ~
Company Secretary & Compliance Otficer
Membership No . A40368
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